
 
Town of Swanzey – Board of Selectmen  Approved Minutes   
September 10, 2016 
Page 1 of 3 
 
 
 

Town of Swanzey, New Hampshire 
Board of Selectmen 

Special Meeting – September 10, 2016 
Swanzey Town Hall, 620 Old Homestead Highway, Swanzey, NH 

 

CALL TO ORDER 
The meeting was called to order by Chair W. William Hutwelker III at 9:00 a.m. at the Swanzey Town Hall. Present 
were W. William Hutwelker III, Kenneth P. Colby, Jr., and Sylvester Karasinski.  Also present was Town 
Administrator Michael Branley. The meeting began as a Coffee and Conversation with the Board and continued as 
a meeting regarding the need for facilities improvements in the Town. Minutes were taken by Planning & 
Community Development Director Sara Carbonneau.  
 
OTHERS PRESENT  
From 9 a.m. to 10 a.m.:  Code Enforcement Officer Mike Jasmin, CIPC/MFRC members Glenn Page and Steve 
Bittel, and residents Eileen Longe, Kathy Nicholson, and Dan Coffman.    
From 10 a.m. to 11:15 a.m.:  Code Enforcement Officer Mike Jasmin, CIPC/MRFC members Glenn Page and Steve 
Bittel, MRFC member Wally Smith, CIPC members Jane Johnson and Bob Smith, resident Eileen Longe, 
Representative Ben Tilton, Fire Chief Norm Skantze, and Fire Inspector Eric Mattson. 
 
From 9 a.m. to 10 a.m., the Board hosted coffee and conversation with several citizens.  Items discussed were the 
Town’s soccer program & recreational programming, aerobatic activity at the Dillant-Hopkins Airport, the west 
village park and Main Street project, volunteer activities at the Carpenter Home, the down-shifting of costs by the 
State in conjunction with the Route 32 paving project, and the DPW salt shed project.  No decisions were made. 
 
DISCUSSION 
Town’s Soccer Program & Recreational Programming 
Coffman stated that additional attention should be paid to the Town’s soccer program & recreational 
programming.  Felt that “advertising” for the programs was lacking – needs more than info on the sign out front.  
Coffman encouraged the new recreation director to work closely with the school district’s athletic director.  
Question was raised as to the composition of the Town’s Recreation Committee.  Branley stated that Recreation 
Director Ian Fraunfelder was working on this.  Selectmen stated that they would like a report back on his 
recommendations regarding the Recreation Committee by 9/21 or 9/28/16.  Selectmen also noted that they were 
meeting with representatives from the school and school board on 9/14, where communication and cooperative 
efforts for recreational programming could be discussed.   
 
Aerobatic Activities at Dillant-Hopkins Airport 
Kathy Nicholson from Eaton Road was present to express her displeasure at the aerobatic activities that took 
place at the Dillant-Hopkins Airport over the summer.  Nicholson stated that the activities negatively impacted her 
family’s enjoyment of using their yard during the summer – the aerobatic activities typically take place during 
good weather when one wants to be outside and on holidays.  Nicholson stated that the pilots are from out of 
town and use Dillant-Hopkins Airport for aerobatic activities, implying that the home base for the pilots does not 
allow aerobatic activities due to the disruptive nature of these activities.   

Selectmen noted that the Town has no jurisdiction over the permitting of these activities – rather, the 
jurisdiction lies with the Keene City Council.  Selectmen suggested that Nicholson contact residents in Swanzey 
and in the Edgewood neighborhood of Keene to coordinate their opposition to these activities and to follow-up 
with the Keene City Council.  Hutwelker noted that there had been opposition voiced by the Edgewood 
neighborhood residents earlier this year and that the City Council’s vote was “close.”   
 



 
Town of Swanzey – Board of Selectmen  Approved Minutes   
September 10, 2016 
Page 2 of 3 
 
 
 

Nicholson stated that she appreciated “Coffee & Conversation,” as well as the re-emergence of Swanzey 
Uncovered. 
 
Volunteer Activities at the Carpenter Home 
Nicholson stated that she has been volunteering at the Carpenter Home, planting flowers and cleaning up some of 
the existing gardens.  Hutwelker stated that there may be an opportunity for her to obtain some plants from a 
house that is being sold on Old Richmond Road.  Selectmen thanked Nicholson for her help and her feedback. 
 
Downshifting of Costs to Town from Route 32 Paving Project 
Page stated that the Swanzey Sewer Commission was informed that it would be responsible for raising the height 
of the sewer manholes when Route 32 is re-paved by the State in 2017.  Page stated that to increase the height, 
as well as needing to repair manholes that have “taken a beating by the gravel trucks” would cost the sewer 
commission approximately $45,000 to $50,000 – resulting in an unanticipated cost to the Town.  Page stated that 
he has spoken with State Representative Jim McConnell regarding this situation, but has not yet heard if the Town 
will receive any assistance.  Page also stated that the State will not include the necessary manhole work as a “bid 
alt.”  Hutwelker stated that he will follow-up on this concern with Representative McConnell. 
 
DPW Salt Shed Project 
Jasmin provided the Selectmen with an estimate of $118,704 for the construction of a 65’ x 80’ clear span 
structure (see attached).  Jasmin noted that the estimate does not include electrical, floor, lighting and the 
installation of the concrete blocks and other DPW labor.  Jasmin estimated that the installation would require 1 to 
1-1/2 weeks of DPW staff time.  Jasmin also stated that it appears that the fabric may not need to be flame 
retardant, which would save $4,150.  Jasmin also stated that if the fabric is flame retardant, it reduces the 
warranty on the material to 10 years (versus 20).   
 It was questioned whether the DPW staff have time to do this project in 2016, as they are also committed 
to repairing the Swanzey Lake Dam this fall.  In addition, it was noted that if the $118,704 was expended (as 
estimated by Jasmin), it would leave approximately $12,000 in the Public Works Facilities Expendable Trust fund, 
which would likely not be enough to complete the project if the work contemplated to be completed by DPW staff 
was to be contracted out (electrical, floor, etc.).   

Selectmen asked Branley/Jasmin to speak with DPW Director Dunham to get his thoughts on undertaking 
the salt shed project in 2016.  Selectmen want to know this information in time for their next meeting on 9/14/16. 
 
Joint Meeting of Selectmen, CIPC and MRFC Members 

 Branley stated that Katie Cassidy Sutherland is working on the plans for the Police Station renovations.  He 
will check with her to determine where she is in the process. 

 At the Selectmen’s meeting on 9/14, the Board will meet with the School Board Chair and Superintendent 
to discuss Wilcox School and whether the school district would consider conveying the property to the 
Town. 

 Salt shed – awaiting feedback from DPW Director Dunham as to whether or not to move forward with this 
project in 2016.  Carbonneau questioned whether the product was proprietary and needed to go out to 
bid in accordance with the Town’s purchasing policy.   Branley stated that it was his understanding that 
the product was proprietary, but he would check further into this.  Branley also noted that there are other 
construction options that may be worth pursuing.  Jasmin stated that a consulting engineer stated that a 
fabric structure was “not his preference.“ 

 Bittel stated that he had met with Branley and bookkeeper Theresa Lounder regarding the capital reserve 
and expendable trust accounts.  He stated that the CIPC would review on 9/12/16 the spreadsheet that he 
prepared and to come up with recommendations for future contributions by the end of this month.  Bittel 



 
Town of Swanzey – Board of Selectmen  Approved Minutes   
September 10, 2016 
Page 3 of 3 
 
 
 

stated that the CIPC needs to get feedback from department heads regarding their proposed capital 
expenditures. 

 Suggestion was made that the property located at 120 Pine Street should be looked at for potential 
offices for DPW and Recycling.  Selectmen decided that a site visit would take place on Wednesday, 
September 14th at 5:00 p.m. 

 It was acknowledged that any planning for Town Hall/Fire Station would be deferred to 2017. 
 Repairs and upgrades have been taking place at the Recycling Center.  It was noted that the Recycling 

Center “funds itself” Through it’s revolving fund. 
 Question was raised regarding the status of repairs to the DPW building’s roof.  Branley stated that it was 

his understanding that estimates had been obtained earlier.  However, the estimates would likely need to 
be updated. 

 The Grange building was discussed.  B. Smith stated that should the school district be willing to convey the 
Wilcox School property that utilizing the Grange site and the Wilcox School property may be a viable 
building site for Town facilities.  Longe and Johnson stated that it was important to the community to 
preserve the Grange building, noting that it is on the National Historical Register.  Longe stated that the 
Swanzey Preservation Society’s desire is to restore the building to a building dedicated for community use 
(for organizations such as Boy Scouts, Girl Scouts, the Grange, etc.).  Longe noted that the building needs 
renovations, a septic system, electrical work, and some structural work.  Jasmin stated that some roof 
rafters needed to be fixed, but thought that the building was in fairly sound structural condition.  It was 
suggested that this discussion was somewhat pre-mature until the Selectmen meet with the School 
District.  W. Smith stated that the future of the Grange building should be put before the voters. 

 MRFC status – Branley stated that the BOS needs to make a decision about the status and role of the 
MFRC vs. the CIPC.  The BOS asked him to put together the memberships of both committees for their 
upcoming meeting. 

 
ADJOURNMENT 
Motion to adjourn was made by Karasinski. The motion was seconded by Colby without further discussion. All 
were in favor. Motion passed.  Adjournment occurred at 11:15 a.m. 
 
After adjournment, resident Jack Bys stopped by to express his appreciation for the installation of the new flags 
along Route 32 and suggested that they be extended further along the road. 
 
Respectfully Submitted,  
 
 
Sara H. Carbonneau 
Secretary Pro Tem 
 
Approved on September 21, 2016 


